### **Kansas State High School Activities Association**

# **MINUTES**



Executive Board Meeting KSHSAA Board Room Wednesday, June 15, 2022 Thursday, June 16, 2022

Note: Minutes are subject to approval by the Board at its next meeting.

The Executive Board met in the office of the Kansas State High School Activities Association on Wednesday and Thursday, June 15-16, 2022, with the following in attendance: President Roger Perkins, Matt Garber, Deena Horst, Mike Kastle, Greg Rosenhagen, Tammie Romstad and Bill Faflick, Executive Director. Assistant Executive Directors Francine Martin, Mark Lentz, Jeremy Holaday, Craig Manteuffel, Rod Garman, Annie Diederich, and Office/Operations Manager Brent Unruh. Board members Tim Bumgarner, Shannon Haydock, Drew Thon and Linda Wiley were unable to attend. Assistant Executive Director Craig Manteuffel was also unable to attend.

NOTE: Per **Bylaw Article V, Sec. 4**, new Executive Board members elected at the April Board of Directors meeting, shall attend the June Executive Board meeting as observers and for orientation. David Abel, Justin Briggs, Ben Mitchell, Justin Seuser, Sean Spoonts, Delvin Strecker and Paul Zuzelski were present as new members observing the meeting. President Roger Perkins participated with Mr. Faflick in an orientation session with the Executive Board-elect members.

#### **PUBLIC FORUM**

None present.

#### ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS AND UPDATES

The Executive Board heard reports from the Executive Director and administrative staff regarding the status of programs and services of the Association. Staff reported key communications regarding general operations and spring activity championship events. The Executive Director provided a financial report and updates on Association business.

#### **CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS**

The following items were all approved unanimously via consent:

- Minutes of the April 28-29, 2022 Executive Board meeting.
- Minutes of the April 29, 2022 newly elected Executive Board meeting (following the conclusion of the Board of Directors meeting).
- Items approved by KSHSAA staff on behalf of the Executive Board. (A list of these items may be found at the end of these minutes.)
- **Independent Schools At-Large Appointment -** Per **Bylaw Article IV, Section 4(e),** the Executive Board appointed Principal Kenny Waddell, Wichita-Central Christian Academy, to a two-year term on the Board of Directors (2022-2024).
- The Executive Board authorized a budget hearing to be held on Wednesday, September 14, 2022, at 11:30 a.m. in the office of the KSHSAA. The Association budget for the 2022-23 school year will be finalized at that time. Interested parties are welcome to attend.
- To ensure the KSHSAA remains in compliance with the Kansas Open Records Law, the Executive Board voted to designate the Executive Director or his designee, as the "Freedom of Information Officer." Additionally, the Executive Director or his designee will serve as the "Custodian of the Records" for purposes of the Open Records Law.

#### HALL OF FAME COMMITTEE MEMBERS SELECTED

Cara Ledy, former teacher, coach, and principal from Colwich, and Britton Hart, former teacher, coach, A.D., and principal from Emporia, were appointed to the Hall of Fame Selection Committee. They will replace Marvin Estes, Wichita, and Ginny Honomichl, Baldwin City, who have completed four-year terms on the committee. Gerald Henderson, McPherson, was appointed to serve as chair of the committee for 2022-23.

#### **BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING BREAKOUT DEBRIEF**

As part of the April 29 Board of Directors meeting, respective classifications of schools conducted breakout sessions to discuss critical topics which may require action or further study, including placement on the Regional Administrator and Board of Education Meeting agenda. Board members discussed items brought up during these sessions, including summer coaching restrictions, junior high/middle school practice and playing dates, and the new wet bulb globe thermometer for heat index readings.

#### STAFF HANDBOOK UPDATES

Annually, staff evaluate, editorially update, and possibly revise the KSHSAA Staff Handbook. Following review and discussion, changes made for the 2022-23 school year were approved by the Board.

#### ADVISORY GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS

Each year, the Kansas Association of Scholar's Bowl Coaches (KASBC), the Kansas Coaches Association (KCA), the Kansas Interscholastic Athletic Administrators Association (KIAAA), the Kansas Music Educators Association (KMEA), and the Kansas Speech Communications Association (KSCA), survey their membership and develop proposals for amendments to rule and/or championship protocol. These recommendations are introduced at the April Executive Board meeting, captured and distributed via meeting minutes to allow member schools to discuss them and provide feedback. Final discussion and action on all recommendations was conducted at the June meeting of the Executive Board.

#### **Recommendations Adopted**

The following recommendations, submitted by various advisory groups were approved by the Executive Board for immediate implementation:

#### **Cross Country**

1. Discontinue the rule that GPS watches are an aid for runners. (KCA)

#### Rationale:

- Watch can be worn, but GPS is turned off. (Use good faith for implementation.) Ease of administration. (Like with golf and cell phones).
- The advantage is in the administration of the rule. Some of the courses aren't marked. This would assist runners in knowing where they are and knowing the distance run if not marked. 90% of the time there's a gator/golf cart etc. out in front.

#### **Items Referred To Board of Directors Meeting**

The following recommendations, which were submitted by advisory groups, will be submitted for consideration at the next Board of Directors meeting:

None

#### Items Referred To Fall Regional Administrators and Board of Education Meetings

The following recommendations, which were submitted by advisory groups as noted below, will be submitted for discussion and consideration by those attending the Fall Regional Administrators and Board of Education Meetings conducted in October, 2022 at seven different sites across the state:

#### Baseball

1. *(Classes 3A, 2A & 1A)* Should KSHSAA change the playing dates for 3-2-1A baseball to reflect the following: Regional Round 1 should take placed during SCW #45 on Thursday or Friday. Regional rounds 2 and 3 should take place during SCW #46. (KIAAA)

#### Rationale:

Class	Yes	Yes%	No	No%
3A	17	77.3%	5	22.7%
2A	4	50.0%	4	50.0%
1A	3	75.0%	1	25.0%
TOTAL	24	70.6%	10	29.4% PASS

#### **Basketball**

- 2. Allow high school coaches to have a scrimmage (Jamboree) with opposing schools before the start of the season. **(KCA)**Rationale:
  - Kansas High School basketball teams are wanting a jamboree. They want to scrimmage other teams prior to the start of the season to see if they are prepared to start their seasons.
- 3. Add more basketball games to the Kansas basketball total number of games that could be played in a season. (KCA)

#### Rationale:

Adding games to the present total can be achieved by adding three individual games or another tournament to a school's schedule. A school can decide how they want to implement the change in schedule. Also, a school does not have to schedule all games available to them. Bordering states allow as many as 3 to 6 more games than Kansas.

#### **Football**

4. (11-player Classes 3A, 2A, 1A and 8-player Division I and II) Should the KSHSAA change the postseason format for football, to seed the State 1-16 on the East and 1-16 on the West? (KIAAA)

#### Rationale:

Class	Yes	Yes%	No	No%	
<i>3A</i>	19	86.4%	3	15.6%	
2A	8	100%	0	0.0%	
1A	3	75.0%	1	25.0%	
TOTAL	30	88.2%	4	11.8%	PASS

#### Volleyball

5. *(Classes 3A & 2A)* Should the KSHSAA split the state into four groups of 16 and create two sub-states within the groups based on overall seeding of their wins/loss record. **(KIAAA)** 

#### Rationale:

Class	Yes	Yes%	No	No%	
<i>3A</i>	20	90.9%	2	9.1%	
2A	7	87.5%	1	12.5%	
TOTAL	27	90.0%	3	10.0%	PASS

6. *(Class 1A, Divisions I and II)* Should the KSHSAA split the state into four groups of 16 and create two sub-states within the groups based on overall seeding of their wins/loss record. **(KIAAA)** 

#### Rationale:

Class	Yes	Yes%	No	No%	
1A D1	3	75.0%	1	25.0%	
TOTAL	3	75.0%	1	25.0%	PASS

#### Wrestling

7. *(Classes 3A, 2A, 1A)* Should the KSHSAA change the 3-2-1A postseason wrestling format for boys and girls, making both a one-day regional tournament on Friday (Girls) and Saturday (boys) of KSHSAA SCW #33? **(KIAAA)** 

#### Rationale:

Class	Yes	Yes%	No	No%
<i>3A</i>	22	100%	0	0.0%
2A	8	100%	0	0.0%
1A	4	100%	0	0.0%
TOTAL	34	100%	0	0.0%

#### **Recommendations Denied**

The Executive Board voted to deny the following recommendations, which were submitted by various advisory groups, etc.:

**PASS** 

#### **Baseball**

- 1. Should the KSHSAA revise the current policy for 3-2-1A baseball in regard to the current pitch count rule to be as follows: **(KIAAA)** 
  - 0-45 pitches = 1 day of rest.
  - 46-75 pitches = 2 days of rest
  - 76-105 pitches = 3 days of rest
  - 106-120 pitches (max and must be removed after conclusion of batter = 4 days of rest.

#### Rationale:

Class	Yes	Yes%	No	No%	
<i>3A</i>	19	86.4%	3	13.6%	
2A	6	75.0%	2	25.0%	
1A	3	75.0%	1	25.0%	
TOTAL	28	82.4%	6	17.6%	PASS

#### **Basketball**

2. Coaches would like to change the current 1A through 3A playoff system to a similar format like that of 4A through 6A. **(KCA)** 

#### Rationale:

- This format would honor the teams that are having a good season so that all do not get grouped into the same sub-state.
- 3. Should the KSHSAA split the State into four groups of 16 and create two sub-states within the groups based on overall seeding of their wins/loss record. (KIAAA)

#### Rationale:

Class	Yes	Yes%	No	No%	
3A	18	85.7%	3	14.3%	
2A	6	75.0%	2	50.0%	
TOTAL	24	82.8%	5	17.2%	PASS

#### **Cross Country**

4. Provide ten medals for the top three teams at state instead of eight medals. (KCA)

#### Rationale:

- Teams are allowed to have ten runners on the roster for state but only provide seven runner medals and one coach medal if you place in the top three at state. Alternates are eligible to run and could potentially run, therefore they should receive a medal. (Ex. basketball 12)

#### Volleyball

5. Coaches should determine whether or not to switch sides of the court between sets (unless there is an unfair advantage). **(KCA)** 

#### Rationale:

The decision to switch sides of the court this year was a referee's decision. We would like both coaches to come to consensus on that decision, which would be decided during the pre-game conference. If consensus between coaches is not able to be made, then teams would switch sides.

#### General

6. Should the KSHSAA change their policy/practice/procedure to include an "opt-in-box" in the annual KSHSAA School Dues that would include KIAAA/NIAAA dues? **(KIAAA)** 

#### Rationale

Class	Yes	Yes%	No	No%	
6A	24	92.3%	2	7.7%	
5A	14	93.3%	1	6.7%	
4A	9	100.0%	0	0.0%	
3A	19	86.3%	3	13.7%	
2A	8	100.0%	0	0.0%	
1A	3	75.0%	1	25.0%	
TOTAL	77	91.6%	19	8.4%	PASS

#### No Action Items

The Executive Board took no action on the following items, because it is existing policy or because no action is necessary.

None

#### MEMBER HIGH SCHOOL REQUESTS LEAGUE AFFILIATION HEARING

Superintendent David Landis, Principal Kenny Waddell, and Athletic Director Tyler Busenitz from Central Christian Academy in Wichita, appeared before the Executive Board to request the Association assign their school to a league per Bylaw ARTICLE XV, League Affiliation, which reads as follows:

Section 1: Any member school not a member of a league or similar organization may apply to the KSHSAA Executive Board for assistance in acquiring league affiliation.

Section 2: The Board of Directors of the KSHSAA shall develop procedures whereby: (1) the requesting school shall submit sufficient evidence to the Executive Board that it has made a conscientious effort to become affiliated with an existing league; (2) if it appears that the Executive Board may take affirmative action on the request, the requesting school and any league to which the school may be assigned shall have an opportunity to be heard by the Executive Board prior to the time the assignment is made; (3) the Executive Board, after considering all the facts in the matter, may assign the school to an existing league; (4) in the event a school is assigned to a league under the above-mentioned circumstances, no members shall withdraw from that league for a period of three years without unanimous consent of all members of the league including the newly-assigned school, or approval of the Executive Board.

Information was presented to the Executive Board detailing unsuccessful efforts by Wichita-Central Christian to pursue league membership as well as scheduling difficulties and lost opportunities resulting from lack of league membership.

It was the decision of the Executive Board to grant a league assignment hearing at the first meeting of the 2022-23 Executive Board. Subsequently, the hearing has been scheduled for Tuesday, September 13, 2022. The Executive Board voted to have the members of the Heart of America, Heart of the Plains, South Central Border, and Wheat State Leagues appear for purposes of this hearing. It was noted, these leagues have similar sized schools in their membership and their member schools are in the approximate geographic area of Wichita-Central Christian. Superintendents and principals of all schools in the four identified leagues will receive a communication from Mr. Faflick inviting them to attend and participate in the September hearing.

#### **FORFEITURE POLICY**

Following discussion, the Board approved the following forfeiture policy to be included in all sport manuals. This policy will be enacted during regular season play when a school cannot participate in a contest due to a lack of players.

If a regular season game (including invitational tournaments) is not played due to a team/school not having enough players to field a legal team, and both schools agree that a make-up date cannot be determined, the game will count as a forfeit and a win in postseason seeding for the team who was willing and able to play. The game would count as a loss for postseason seeding for the team lacking players. The forfeiting team will be responsible for paying any official fees if the officials cannot be reassigned/cannot makeup the game.

After a school starts the season with a team but is unable to finish the season due to lack of players, all games scheduled will count as a forfeit win unless the school losing a contest can find another opponent. The school with a discontinued team must notify the KSHSAA that they are no longer participating and the KSHSAA will make updates to the win/loss record form.

If a team forfeits and marginal points are used as seeding criteria, the maximum marginal points allowed will be awarded (+/-13 or +/-21 in football, +/-15 for basketball)

#### **GAMES NOT PLAYED**

In an effort to provide consistency for all KSHSAA activities, the Executive Board approved the following language to be included in all team sport manuals.

Games not played because of weather or other unforeseen circumstances do not count as a win or a loss for either team when seeding postseason tournaments. Reasonable efforts should be made between school administrators to reschedule all contests, but if schools are unable to reschedule the game it does not count as a forfeit win or loss and will be recorded as "no game played". When determining seeding for postseason tournaments the number of wins is divided by the number of games played to determine the winning percentage.

This policy applies to both regular season and invitational tournament games. If a tournament is played and a team does not participate due to weather or unforeseen circumstances, the tournament manager will advance a team in the bracket but neither the team advanced nor the team going to the back side of the bracket will count the game as a win or loss. It simply counts as no game played.

Only when the originally scheduled opponent agrees that no reschedule is possible, a school may seek a different opponent to complete the schedule.

#### **FOOTBALL MANUAL UPDATE**

The Board of Directors approved the adoption of 6-player football with the implementation planned for the 2022-23 school year. As 6-player football is conducted with rules congruent to 8-player football, the Executive Board approved the inclusion of 6-player with all 8-player references in the football manual beginning this fall.

#### **GOLF MANUAL UPDATE**

Following discussion, the Board approved the following additional detail to be included in the Golf Manual beginning with the 2022-23 school year.

In the two-day championship format - after the completion of round one, no competitor may play or practice on the competition course. The putting green or driving range is still available at the discretion of course management.

#### **TENNIS MANUAL UPDATES**

Following discussion, the Executive Board approved the following additional details to be included in the Tennis Manual beginning with the 2022-23 school year.

Treatable Medical/Injury Time Outs may only be called after warm-up has been initiated. The single ten minute medical/injury timeout begins when the coach, trainer, or adult responsible arrives courtside to assess and render support for the athlete.

When a match includes a default from both participating teams concurrently, the match shall be declared a win for the side with the highest percentage of games won during the regional tournament. The team points for the places involved will be added, divided by two and then equally awarded to each team.

If a single player or doubles team does not have school teammates to warmup with at the state tournament, they may warmup with a competitor from an opposing team.

#### **BASKETBALL MANUAL CHANGES**

Following discussion, the Executive Board approved the following changes be made to the Basketball Manual beginning with the 2022-23 school year.

Classes 6A, 5A, 4A - Seeding Criteria

- 1. Seeding shall be based strictly on percentage of wins and losses. To determine this percentage, divide the number of games won by the number of games played. (Only varsity competitions will count.) The team with the higher percentage will receive the higher seed. Byes in regular season games/tournaments (including league tournament) ARE NOT to be counted.
- 2. If two teams have an identical percentage, the tie will be broken as follows:
  - a. If the teams tied played each other, the one defeating the other a larger number of times will receive the higher seed.
  - b. If they have played each other and each has defeated the other team under consideration an identical number of times, go to step (c).
  - c. If two teams have the same percentage of wins and (1) or (2) will not resolve the tie, the team with the most wins will receive the better seed.
  - d. If the tie in (c) still remains, the fifteen (15) point tiebreaker procedure will be used.
    - i. A fifteen (15) marginal point tiebreaker procedure will be used to determine seeds when there are two or more teams still tied after criteria #1 and #2 a, b, c are not able to break the tie.
    - ii. The total margin of points each team had in all games prior to seeding shall be used.
    - iii. Marginal points are the point differences in the final game score. The maximum number of marginal points is plus or minus fifteen (15) points in any game.
    - iv. The average marginal points for each team (total marginal points divided by the number of games played) will award the higher seed to the team with the greatest marginal points.
    - v. Forfeited games will not count in the marginal point consideration.
  - e. If the two teams are still tied, a coin flip will decide the higher seed. (Use a person from your community as a witness.)
- 3. If three or more teams have an identical percentage, the tie will be broken as follows:
  - a. If one team has defeated the other two (or more) a larger number of times, it will receive the better seed. If there are two teams left refer to step 2.
  - b. If the tie in (a) still remains, the fifteen (15) point tiebreaker procedure will be used.
    - i. A fifteen (15) marginal point tiebreaker procedure will be used to determine seeds when there are two or more teams still tied after criteria #1 and #2 a, b, c are not able to break the tie.
    - ii. The total margin of points each team had in all games prior to seeding shall be used.

- iii. Marginal points are the point differences in the final game score. The maximum number of marginal points is plus or minus fifteen (15) points in any game.
- iv. The average marginal points for each team (total marginal points divided by the number of games played) will award the higher seed to the team with the greatest marginal points.
- v. Forfeited games will not count in the marginal point consideration.
- c. If there are still multiple schools tied, the manager will draw by lot for top seed, then the tie between the remaining two teams shall be broken by using procedures above. The procedure for draw by lot is to put the names of the teams tied into a hat and draw. The first one drawn will receive the highest seed. Then refer to #2 to break additional ties.
- 4. In sub-state tournaments, teams receiving a bye will consider the bye as a win as it relates to their win-loss record for seeding purposes in subsequent tournaments.

Page 39 & 40 - Clarification regarding mileage and game start time

Start time for single games is 7:00 p.m.

Current: Total mileage more than 100 miles will be considered for an earlier start time.

One way mileage for the visiting team of more than 100 miles will be given consideration for an earlier start time.

#### WRESTLING MANUAL UPDATE

The NFHS has approved 14 weight classes for interscholastic girls wrestling competition, beginning implementation during the 2023-24 school year. In comparison, boys wrestling competitions currently have 14 weight classes. While the NFHS weight class changes are set to begin in two years, states with girls wrestling in place have been given the option of early adoption. Information was given by staff on surrounding states weight class systems and the impact of starting the new weight classes beginning with the next school year. Following discussion, the Executive Board approved the change to 14 weight classes for interscholastic girls wrestling competition beginning in the upcoming 2022-23 school year.

#### NFHS BASEBALL/SOFTBALL RULE REVIEW

Based upon recent and historical end of game issues, staff reviewed game ending procedures for baseball and softball. The NFHS provides the following language relative to game ending procedures in baseball (softball is similar):

- ART. 3 ... If weather or darkness interferes with play so that the game is called (ended) by the umpire, it is a regulation game:
  - a. if five full innings have been played, or if the home team has scored an equal or greater number of runs in four or four and a fraction turns at bat than the visiting team has scored in five turns at bat; or
  - b. if play has gone beyond five full innings.

If the game is called when the teams have not had an equal number of completed turns at bat, the score shall be the same as it was at the end of the last completed inning; except that if the home team in its half of the incomplete inning, scores a run (or runs) which equals or exceeds the opponent's score, the final score shall be as recorded when the game is called.

ART. 4 ... A state association may adopt game-ending procedures that determine how games are ended, including suspended games. However, if a state does not adopt game-ending procedures, or by mutual agreement of the opposing coaches and the umpire-inchief, any remaining play may be shortened or the game terminated. If a state association has adopted game-ending procedures, only those game-ending procedures may be used, unless the opposing coaches wish to terminate the game.

The current KSHSAA position is to complete all suspended games at the state tournament. During the regular season and up to the state tournament quarterfinal round, suspended games are considered complete if they have played five or more innings prior to the suspension. Following discussion, the Executive Board voted to maintain the current end of game procedures for regional games in both baseball and softball.

#### KSHSAA COVERED REVIEW

As we conclude the first year of KSHSAA Covered, the Executive Board reviewed the KSHSAA Covered initiative and provided input on potential adjustments. The Executive Board applicated a very positive and strong first year for KSHSAA Covered.

#### SUMMER COACHING RULES STUDY COMMITTEE

At the April Executive Board meeting, a request was made to convene a committee to review rules impacting the interaction of school coaches and student participants. Staff provided a review on the history of this rule and the outcome of previous committee recommendations which resulted in current rules governing interactions of school coaches and student athletes during summer months. Staff reviewed a general timetable for committee work and clarified the charge to assess current levels of satisfaction among stakeholder groups and suggest amendments for future consideration. The committee will represent the diversity of Kansas and stakeholder groups. The committee will review Kansas history, as well as current restrictions in other similar states. A recommendation may result in proposed modifications for all team and guasi team participants in athletic team activities.

#### MEMBER SCHOOL CONSOLIDATIONS AND CLOSURES

The Executive Board reviewed the status of two separate member schools who may be going through a merger, consolidation, or closure. Discussion was held relative to KSHSAA rules regarding school closures as well as postseason seeding for activities, including football. No action was taken on this informational item.

#### NFHS OFFICIALS' CONSORTIUM AND DEPLOYMENT OF OFFICIATING CURRICULUM

The recruitment, development and retention of event officials continues to be a top priority for the Association. Recently, the NFHS held an Officials Consortium in support of this priority. Staff member Francine Martin was able to attend and provided the Executive Board with feedback and insights from other states on the shortage of officials. Additionally, plans to create an officiating course for high schools were formulated with input from other state associations. The group Ref Reps was represented at the consortium with Ms. Martin and following the meeting, reached out to the KSDE for confirmation on Kansas standards. The Executive Board was updated with proposed curriculum and implementation for possible high school classes that could be started as independent studies with online courses as early as the fall. Ms. Martin will monitor progress and update the Board as changes take place.

#### APPROVED SCHOOL STATUS

KSHSAA staff asked the Executive Board for input relative to items which may disqualify a school from achieving "approved status" with the KSHSAA. Specifically, there has been concern relative to schools who actively recruit students away from member schools to play on their athletic teams. KSHSAA approval is contingent on compliance with a number of factors designed to maintain comparable strength, size, skill levels for all school team members. If a school seeking approval maintains different levels of "varsity" teams within a defined activity, and the rosters for those teams are fluid, it is challenging to minimize exposure for member school students. When such applications are received, staff will follow up with the school requesting approved status in an expectation that students must maintain roster status throughout a season in that single activity. Staff will follow up with schools seeking approval as appropriate.

#### TRANSFER SCENARIO DISCUSSION

Staff provided a possible transfer situation to the Executive Board for clarification on the application of Rule 18 Transfer. The situation involves a student who resides with parents with one parent assuming a new job at a new school. The student seeking eligibility at the new school where the parent is now working. The family made no change in residence. The parent originally worked at the former school and the student is transferring to the new school where the parent is now employed. Following discussion, the Executive Board confirmed this situation would not meet the hardship exception detailed in Transfer Rule 18-1-13. Instead, if the student transfers schools to continue attending the same school where the parent is working, the new school would need to apply for a partial-limited eligibility transfer per Rule 18-1-6.

#### **NEXT MEETING**

The next regularly scheduled Executive Board meeting will be held:

Tuesday, September 13, 2022, 10 a.m. - 5 p.m.

Wednesday, September 14, 2022, 8:30 a.m. - 3 p.m.

(Budget Hearing - 11:30 a.m.)

#### **ADMINISTRATIVE RULE ITEMS**

NOTE: In the following listing, middle/junior high schools are indicated in all capital letters.

## QUALIFICATIONS OF COACHES/DIRECTORS RULE 10

#### The following were approved under Rule 10-1-2 (Supervised)

- (1) Thomas Cline, Colby HS, Football
- (2) Shelby Gardner-Mosier, Colby HS, Basketball, Track & Field, Volleyball
- (3) Misty Swaney, DERBY NORTH MS, Cheer
- (4) Miles Alexander, DE SOTO-LEXINGTON TRAILS MS, Football
- (5) Jakeb Blake, DE SOTO-LEXINGTON TRAILS MS, Basketball
- (6) Ronnie Lindsay, DE SOTO-LEXINGTON TRAILS MS, Football
- (7) Jamie Menees, DE SOTO-LEXINGTON TRAILS MS, Track & Field
- (8) Jacob Santos, HAYSVILLE MS, Football
- (9) Bret Towell, Hutchinson-Trinity Catholic HS, Football
- (10) Kylee Baldetti, HUTCHINSON-TRINITY CATHOLIC JH, Basketball
- (11) Amy Bornholdt, HUTCHINSON-TRINITY CATHOLIC JH, Cross Country
- (12) Olivia Beets, MADISON JH, Cheer
- (13) Kellen Baysinger, Overland Park-Blue Valley Northwest HS, Wrestling
- (14) Justin Pitts, Overland Park-Blue Valley Northwest HS, Basketball
- (15) Joseph Tii, Overland Park-Blue Valley Northwest HS, Football
- (16) Haley Hedrick, Pretty Prairie HS, Cheer
- (17) Brandon McDonnell, Rossville HS, Basketball
- (18) Jessica Harmon, TOPEKA-ROBINSON MS, Girls Soccer
- (19) Chanell Weaver, TOPEKA-ROBINSON MS, Volleyball
- (20) Matt Trelow, Towanda-Circle HS, Soccer

#### The following were approved under Rule 10-1-2 (Unsupervised)

- 1) Hollie, Christy, BENTON-CIRCLE MS, Cheer
- (2) Mike, Kinuthia, Colby HS, Cross Country, Track & Field
- (3) Shelbi, McAlister, Colby HS, Volleyball
- (4) Cole, Parks, ELKHART MS, Basketball
- (5) Brett, Rolfs, Ellsworth HS, Basketball
- (6) Jay, Hill, HAYSVILLE MS, Wrestling
- (7) Patrick, McCormack, HAYSVILLE MS, Football, Wrestling
- (8) Shannon, Obermite, Hutchinson-Trinity Catholic HS, Basketball
- (9) Jeremy, Tan, Hutchinson-Trinity Catholic HS, Basketball
- (10) Lauren, Cost, Hutchinson-Trinity Catholic HS, Volleyball
- (11) Molly, McElgunn, Hutchinson-Trinity Catholic HS, Track & Field
- (12) Don, Wilkins, HUTCHINSON-TRINITY CATHOLIC JH, Basketball
- (13) Sam, Davis, Leavenworth HS, Basketball
- (14) Elise, Nill, Overland Park-Blue Valley Southwest HS, Dance/ Drill Team
- (15) Emily, Dewalt, Topeka-Cair Paravel Latin School, Volleyball
- (16) Cole, Dister, Topeka-Cair Paravel Latin School, Basketball
- (17) Brian, Ewing, Topeka-Cair Paravel Latin School, Basketball
- 18) Doug, Woolery, Topeka-Cair Paravel Latin School, Soccer

## TRANSFER RULE 18 (Possible Limited Eligibility)

## The following were ruled (Eligible) for the activities listed under Rule 18-1-6

(1) Chloe Adkins, Hays HS Formerly attended Hays-Thomas More Prep-Marian HS Varsity: Cheerleader Non-Varsity: Volleyball, Girls Track & Field

#### TRANSFER RULE 18 (Hardship)

## The following were ruled (Eligible) for the activities listed under Rule 18-1-13

- (1) Eleanor Rieck, Girard HS
  - Formerly attended Pittsburg-St. Marys Colgan HS
- (2) Addybelle Birdsall, Hays HS Formerly attended Plainville HS
- (3) Cici Phillippe, Lawrence HS
  - Formerly attended KVC
- (4) Gunner Catura, QUINTER JH Formerly attended HAYS MS

- (5) Cameron Cleveland, Salina-Sacred Heart HS Formerly attended Concordia HS
- (6) Emily Langley, Winchester-Jefferson County North HS Formerly attended Easton-Pleasant Ridge HS

## The following were ruled (Not Eligible) for the activities listed under Rule 18-1-13

 Jonah Sparks, Arma-Northeast HS Formerly attended Frontenac HS

#### COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT RULE 29

The following were approved under Rule 29-2-1, 29-3-1 (schools may be combined for interschool activities . . . for the activities listed, with the identification of the combined team and/or the school responsible for administering the activity in parenthesis):

#### Rule 29-2-1 (High Schools)

Beloit-St. John's/Tipton Catholic High Schools

Girls & Boys Basketball, Cheerleading, Football (8-player), Volleyball

{St. John's-Tipton, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

#### Dexter/Cedar Vale High Schools

Baseball, Girls & Boys Basketball, Football (8-player), Softball, Girls & Boys Track & Field Volleyball {Cedar Vale-Dexter, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

## Fredonia/Longton-Elk Valley High Schools Football (11-player)

{Fredonia, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

#### Hays-Thomas More Prep-Marian/Ellis High Schools

Girls & Boys Soccer

{Thomas More Prep-Marian, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

#### Haysville-Campus/Clearwater High Schools

Girls & Boys Soccer

{Campus, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

#### Lansing/Basehor-Linwood High Schools

Girls & Boys Swimming & Diving {Lansing, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

#### Logan/Palco High Schools

Girls & Boys Basketball, Football (8-player), Volleyball {Logan-Palco, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

#### McPherson/Lindsborg-Smoky Valley/Moundridge High Schools Girls Swimming & Diving

{McPherson, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

#### McPherson-Elyria/Hutchinson-Central Christian High Schools Boys Soccer

{Elyria Christian, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

#### Osborne/Downs-Lakeside High Schools Girls & Boys Wrestling

{Osborne, 2022-23 & 2023-24}

Topeka/Topeka-Cair Paravel High Schools Baseball, Boys Golf, Girls & Boys Track & Field {Topeka, 2021-22 & 2022-23}

#### Rule 29-3-1 (Jr. High/Middle Schools)

Ashland/Bucklin Jr. High Schools Football (6-player) – 2022-23

#### Beloit-St. John's/Tipton Catholic Jr. High Schools

Girls & Boys Basketball, Cheerleading, Football (8-player), Volleyball – 2022-23

#### Dexter/Cedar Vale Middle Schools

Girls & Boys Basketball, Football (8-player), Girls & Boys Track & Field, Volleyball – 2022-23

#### Greensburg-Kiowa County/Haviland

Girls & Boys Basketball, Girls & Boys Cross Country, Football (8-player), Girls & Boys Track & Field, Volleyball – 2022-23

## Independence/Independence-St. Andrew's Catholic/Independence-Zion Lutheran Middle Schools

Girls & Boys Basketball, Football (11-player), Girls & Boys Golf, Girls & Boys Tennis, Girls & Boys Track & Field, Volleyball, Girls & Boys Wrestling – 2022-23

#### Logan/Palco Jr. High Schools

Girls & Boys Basketball, Football (8-player), Volleyball – 2022-23

#### Parsons/Parsons-St. Patrick Catholic Middle Schools

Boys Basketball, Football (11-player), Girls & Boys Golf, Girls & Boys Tennis, Girls & Boys Wrestling - 2022-23

#### Plainville/Natoma-Paradise Middle Schools

Football (11-player) – 2022-23

#### Sabetha/Wetmore Middle Schools

Football (11-player) - 2022-23

South Haven/Wellington-Christian Middle Schools Girls & Boys Basketball, Cheerleading, Girls & Boys Track & Field, Volleyball - 2022-23

#### Western Plains/Healy Jr. High Schools

Girls & Boys Basketball, Cheerleading, Football (Flag), Volleyball – 2022-23

### **APPROVED EVENTS AND ACTIVITIES**

#### **ATHLETIC**

Date	Event	Sponsor	Sport
5/6/22	Shawnee Mission North Relays	Shawnee Mission North HS, Overland Park KS	T&F
5/6-5/7/22	Howard Wood Dakota Relays	Sioux Falls HS, SD	T&F

#### NON-ATHLETIC

<u>Date</u>	Event	Sponsor	Activity				
9/12-9/14/22	Kansas State Fair Marching Band Program	Kansas State Fair. Hutchinson KS	Music				

